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1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

In accordance with the Remediation Strategy the following remedial actions were 

required: 

 

• Demonstrate that made ground from the impacted area in the soft landscaping been 

removed to at least 600mm. 

 

• Provide a barrier of clean soil in order to remove the pathway between any residual 

contamination and residents. 

 

The made ground within the impacted soft landscaped area has been removed to at 

600mm depth. A single sample was taken from the imported topsoil, and no results 

exceeded the relevant soil screening values, and no asbestos was identified. 

 

The completion of these remediation measures has ensured that the identified risks are 

reduced such that the development does not pose an increased risk to human health.  
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2 BRIEF 

Mr Ron Golan requested GO Contaminated Land Solutions to complete a verification 

report for a site at 27 Maresfield Gardens, Hampstead. 

 

This report should be read in conjunction with the following GO Contaminated Land 

Solutions reports:  

• Soil Testing Report ref. 2166-ST-1, issued 12 October 2021 

• Remediation Strategy ref. 2166-P3E-1, issued 18 October 2021 

 

3 PREVIOUS CONTAMINATION TESTING 

 

In the soil testing investigation one of the samples exceeded the screening values for lead. 

A further six samples were taken in close proximity to the original exceedance, in two 

concentric circles of 1m and 2m radius to determine whether the lead exceedance is a 

hotspot or more widespread. The test results showed no exceedances for lead in the 

additional samples; therefore, the exceedance was considered to be restricted to within 

1m radius from BH2.  

 

Based on these results a potential risk to sensitive receptors was identified and 

remediation was recommended. 

 

4 REMEDIAL SITE WORKS 

4.1 Excavation  

 

The made ground within the impacted area has been removed to a depth of 600mm.  

 

A 2000mm x 2000mm x 600mm pit was excavated. Removed made ground was 

transferred to an appropriate landfill facility. 

 

 Refer to appendix F for Waste Transport Certificates for material removed from site. 

 

4.2 Soft Landscaping and Permeable Areas 

 

The topsoil for the pit was about to be laid at the time of visit therefore, pits to verify 

topsoil depth were not required. A sample was taken from the stockpile of imported 
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topsoil to be laid within the excavation.  Refer to appendix F. 

 

A plan is contained in appendix B and a photographic record of excavation and imported 

topsoil is included in appendix E. 

 

5 VERIFICATION TESTING 

Imported topsoil was ready to be sampled on site in a stockpile. A sample was taken from 

the stockpile for testing. The verification test result for the sample of imported fill is 

attached in appendix D. The sample was tested for a range of commonly occurring 

contaminants and indicators of contamination including those given by the 

Contaminated Land Exposure Assessment (CLEA). These include, heavy metals, 

aromatic and aliphatic hydrocarbons, in accordance with Environment Agency 

guidelines, and speciated PolyAromatic Hydrocarbon (PAH) and asbestos. 

 

All the results have been compared to the Atkins 2017 ATRISKsoil SSVs for residential 

use with plant uptake, for 1% SOM, where available. These guideline values have been 

derived using the updated CLEA v1.071 model, previously published Category 4 

Screening Levels (C4SLs) by DEFRA and information in the Environment Agency 

guidance SR2. Where ATRISKsoil SSVs have not been derived, the Category 4 Screening 

Levels have been used, and for determinands which do not have either of the above, the 

LQM/CIEH Suitable 4 Use Levels (S4ULs) assessment criteria have been used. 

 

To assess the genotoxic poly-aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs), the benzo-a-pyrene 

surrogate marker approach has been adopted. The results for genotoxic PAHs have been 

compared to the soil PAH coal tar mixtures used in the Culp et al 1998 study, to determine 

if they are sufficiently similar and establish if benzo-a-pyrene is a suitable surrogate 

marker for PAHs.  

 

1No. sample was collected from the imported topsoil ready to be laid in the 

2000x2000x600mm excavation.  
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5.1 Sampling and Testing Regime 

 

Location 

Reference 

Rationale for 

Location 

Depth 

(mbgl) 

Sampling, Testing & 

Monitoring 

V1 
Stockpile of 

imported topsoil 
n/a 

Metals, hydrocarbons, PAHs & 

asbestos 

 

 

5.2 Test Results 

 

The initial and additional results have been compared to Atkins 2017 ATRISKsoil SSVs 

derived using CLEA for all sample locations. Assessment levels used are for residential 

with plant uptake.  

 

Test results and summary sheet are contained in appendix D. 

 

One slight exceedance was identified for Dibenzo(a,h)anthracene at V1, and a marginal 

exceedance for Benzo(b)fluoranthene was also identified at V1. Subsequently the LQM 

PAH profiling tool has been used to confirm the validity of the surrogate marker 

approach, which assesses whether minor PAH exceedances can be discounted if results 

are in line with PAH coal tar mixtures used in the Culp et al 1998 study. The results show 

that it is appropriate to use benzo-a-pyrene as a surrogate marker for this data set, and 

benzo(a)pyrene was recorded to be below the screening level, therefore the 

Dibenzo(a,h)anthracene  and Benzo(b)fluoranthene exceedance are not considered to 

represent any significant risks to on site or off site receptors.  

 

Ref Determinand 
Depth 

(mbgl) 

Value 

(mg/kg) 

Screening 

Value 

(mg/kg) 

Is B(a)P below 

screening 

value 

(4.95mg/kg) 

Surrogate 

marker 

approach 

suitable? 

V1  

Dibenzo(a,h) 

anthracene 
n/a 

0.5 0.24 Yes Yes 

Benzo(b) 

fluoranthene 
2.8 2.6 Yes Yes 

 

Following the results of PAH profiling tool, it is considered that test results are compliant 

with the criteria for verification testing. Results of the PAH profiling can be found in 

appendix H. 

 

No asbestos was identified in any of the samples. 
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6 DUTY OF CARE DOCUMENTATION 

The material removed was taken to an appropriate landfill facility. 

 

The contractor responsible for the remedial works confirmed that no visual, olfactory or 

physical signs of contamination were identified during the works. A confirmation email 

is included in appendix G. 

 

A full record of “Duty of Care” documentation, waste transfer notes and tickets 

confirming receipt at the landfill is contained in appendix F. 

 

7 CONCLUSIONS 

The previous reports identified some residual risks to site residents, neighbours, and 

construction and maintenance workers from a single lead exceedance. Appropriate 

remediation measures have been described in the Remediation Strategy.  

 

Based upon the verification sample results it has been concluded that the source of 

contamination has been removed and an appropriate barrier has been put into place, 

therefore there is no source-pathway-receptor link.  

 

It has been concluded that the remedial site works have been successful in ensuring 

that the development does not pose an increased risk to human health. 
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This document has been prepared for the titled project and should not be relied upon or 

used for any other project without an independent check being carried out as to its 

suitability and the prior written authority of GO Contaminated Land Solutions Ltd 

being obtained. No responsibility or liability is accepted for the consequences of this 

document being used for a purpose other than that for which it was commissioned.  Any 

person using or relying on this document for such other purpose will by such use or 

reliance be taken to confirm his agreement to indemnify GO Contaminated Land 

Solutions Ltd for all loss or damage resulting therefrom. GO Contaminated Land 

Solutions Ltd accepts no responsibility or liability for this document to any party other 

than Mr Ron Golan by whom it was commissioned. 
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Appendix A – Site Location Plan 
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Appendix B – Sample Location Plan 
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2000mm 

Sample V1 taken from 

stockpile of imported 

topsoil  

Impacted area of  

Made Ground Removed  

(2000x2000x600mm) 
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Appendix C – Previous Contamination Testing  
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Appendix D – Verification Test Results  
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Appendix E – Photographs of Excavation and Imported Topsoil Stockpile 
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Remedial Works 
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Top down view of excavation with 1m rule for scale 

 

 

Imported topsoil ready to be laid  
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Appendix F – Topsoil Test Certificate & Duty of Care Documentation 
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Open top IBC used to transport 

soil waste 

Topsoil purchase receipt 



  

 

2166-P4E-1: Maresfield Gardens, Hampstead 

Mr Ron Golan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix G – Unforeseen Contamination  
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From: S3 Maintenance Ltd <s3maintenanceltd@gmail.com> 
Date: Wednesday, 4 May 2022 at 15:33 

To: Ron Golan <ron@golanfamily.com> 
Subject: Re: 1000kg contaminated soil 

Hello, 
  
No visual, olfactory or physical signs of contamination were identified during the remedial 
works 
  

Kind Regards  
Kinga Mita 
  

  

  
  

  

From: Sarah Cruickshank <Sarah.Cruickshank@winwaste.com> 

Date: Tuesday, 3 May 2022 at 08:54 
To: Ron Golan <ron@golanfamily.com>, S3 Maintenance Ltd 

<s3maintenanceltd@gmail.com> 

Subject: RE: 1000kg contaminated soil 

Good morning Ron, 
  
Please find attached paperwork. 
  
Regards  
  
  

 

Sarah Cruickshank 
Customer Relationship Manager 
  

PS Find out about our latest accreditation success! Click here. 
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Appendix H – LQM PAH Profiling Tool Results 
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